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14 May, 2024 

Todd Coles 
City Clerk 
City of Vaughan 
Office of the Clerk 
2141 Major Mackenzie Drive West 
Vaughan, ON 
L6A 1T1 

Sent via email: clerks@vaughan.ca  

Re: Notice of Objection for the Proposed Designation of 7961 Jane Street under Part 
IV, Section 29 of the Ontario Heritage Act 

Dear Mr. Coles: 

LHC Heritage Planning & Archaeology Inc. (“LHC”) has been retained to provide heritage 
consulting services and advice to Cola Holdings Inc. (the “Owner”), the registered owner of 7961 
Jane Street (the “Property”).  

On 16 April 2024 Municipal Council issued a Notice of Intention to Designate for 7961 Jane Street 
under Part IV, Section 29 of the Ontario Heritage Act, R.S.O. 1990, c.O. 18 as amended (“OHA”). 
Please consider this letter as the Owner’s objection to the proposed designation of the Property 
under Part IV Section 29 (5) of the OHA. 

The Owner understands that the property may have cultural heritage value or interest (CHVI). 
However, they request that designation of the Property be deferred until LHC can prepare an 
independent evaluation of the Property and requests the opportunity to work with City heritage 
staff to confirm the CHVI of the Property and/or refine the Statement of Cultural Heritage Value 
or Interest and list of heritage attributes for the Property.  

LHC has reviewed the evaluation of the Property under Ontario Regulation 9/06 (O. Reg. 9/06) 
included in the 31 January 2024 Heritage Vaughan Committee Report, its attachments—including 
the Statement of Cultural Heritage Value—and the Notice of Intention to Designate. The reasons 
for objection include: 

• The O. Reg. 9/06 evaluation included in the Heritage Vaughan Committee Report and the
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Statement of Cultural Heritage Value includes a limited architectural description of the 
house and limited history of the Property. It does not include analysis on how this 
information demonstrates that the Property meets criteria from O. Reg. 9/06.  

• The O. Reg. 9/06 evaluation indicates that the Property meets criteria 1, 2, 4, 5 and 8 but
does not explain how each criteria is met.

o For criteria 1, the information included does not describe if the house is a rare,
unique, representative or early expression of a style, type, expression, material or
construction method. The information provided only describes the house as an
Edwardian—foursquare—style.

o For criteria 2, there is no discussion of how the house demonstrates that it
displays a high degree of craftsmanship or artistic merit. Furthermore, in our
professional experience a visit to the building would be required to determine if it
demonstrates craftsmanship and there is no evidence that the Property was
visited.

o For criteria 4, the brief history of the property and associated people in the
evaluation and Statement of Cultural Heritage Value describes early settlers and
19th century history. The history does not clearly describe a direct association that
is significant. Much of the history presented appears to pre-date construction of
the house. It is unclear how the house and current lot configuration are directly
connected with this earlier history except that the lot was created out of a larger
plot owned by the broader family.

In our experience, a direct association requires the person who lived in or built a
house to be significant themselves. A grandfather/grandmother, father/mother,
uncle/aunt, son/daughter, etc… who was a significant person or early settler or
landowner is not a direct association. The analysis for evaluation should be revised
to clearly demonstrate a direct association between the Property and themes,
events, beliefs, people, activities, organizations or institutions that are significant
to a community.

Regarding the date range associated with the house of 1879-1915; our preliminary
research includes a newspaper article on the Smith Farm from 1960 that indicates
the house was built in 1934 (newspaper article attached). We also reviewed late
19th and early 20th century census data and Barbara Plander’s 1975 report A
Report of Buildings Pre-1900 in the Township of Vaughan and Kathryn Anderson’s
1988 article on “Concession 4, Lot 7, Edgeley: Jacob Smith Family”, Architectural
and Historical Reports, in Vol. III, J-K, prepared by the Town of Vaughan.
Information from these sources indicate a 1930s date of construction for the
house. Additional research should be completed in an attempt to confirm this.

o For criteria 5, there is no discussion how this Property yields or has the potential
to yield information that contributes to a community of culture.

o For criteria 8, the evaluation describes a historical link and physical location of the
property. It describes how the Smith family owned the land and built the house.
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However, there is no discussion how this is a historical link to its context. The 
contextual value discussion describes how “the building reflects their [Smith 
family] success and hard work in the establishment of a homestead”. However, 
this Property appears to have no tangible remains of a homestead or this early 
history. There does not appear to be a connection between the house on the 
Property and any earlier homestead. Furthermore, the context around the 
Property is significantly changed from that of the 19th and early 20th centuries. 
Other than the nearby cemetery, nothing of the 19th or early 20th century context 
or the former rail yard context appears to remain in the area.  

Concerns with the list of heritage attributes in the Statement of Cultural Heritage Value include: 

• The heritage attributes describe broad features instead of specific features that must be
retained to conserve cultural heritage value. There is concern that the vague nature of the
heritage attributes introduces potential for different interpretation which could make
conservation of the heritage attributes and planning for change on the Property
challenging.

• Without more detailed information and analysis in the evaluation and a clear statement of
if the house is rare, unique, representative or early it is unclear what exactly the heritage
attributes are intended to conserve.

• The heritage attributes under the Historical/Associative Value and Contextual Value
categories are unclear and are not physical features that contribute to or support the
cultural heritage value or interest of the Property.

Concerns with the Notice of Intention to Designate include: 

• That the Reasons for Proposed Designation are not the same as the Statement of Cultural
Heritage Value. Based on this difference it is unclear what details a heritage designation
by-law will contain.

In summary, on behalf of the Owner, in our professional opinion additional research, analysis and 
evaluation should be completed before this Property is considered for designation under Part IV 
Section 29 of the Ontario Heritage Act. The CHVI of the Property should be confirmed and 
Statement of Cultural Heritage Value should be revised to precisely describe heritage attributes of 
the Property.  

Sincerely, 

Christienne Uchiyama, MA CAHP 

Principal | Manager, Heritage Consulting Services 
LHC Heritage Planning & Archaeology Inc. 

Cc:  Owner 
Nick R. Borcescu, Senior Heritage Planner 
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Encl:  Notice of Intention to Designate, dated 16 April 2024. 

Smith Farm Vaughan 158 Years in Family, The Liberal, Thursday February 4, 1960. 
Newspaper article by Mona Robertson. 
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